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COMELAINT
This is an action to recover damages and civil penaities on behaif of the United States of
America arising fromn false statements and claims made by defendants Bioport Corporation and
Robert C. Myers, in violation of the Faise Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-32, as amended.
Beginoing in 1990 and continuing through 1998, defendants submitted false statements,
records, and claims for payment to the United States in connection with the developmemt and
procurcment of Anthrax Vaccine Adsorbed for use by the United States Department of Defense
{(“DOD™).
Defendants’ false ciaims followed from the faise statements and false records provided by
defendant BioPort Corporation and Robert C. Myers during the several contracts between the
defendant BioPort Corporation and the United States from 1990 to the present. BioPort
Corporation provided an adulterated. and misbranded drug product to the United States, falsely
claiming the product as the Food and Drtig Administration (“FDA™) approved Anthrax
Vaccine Adsorbed (“AVA™). As a resuit of the scheme, the government improperly paid
defendamts mllions of dollars.
Defendant’s fraudulent claims for additional monies through modifications to contracts with
DOD resulted in the government improperly paying defendants mullions of dollars.
The False Claims Act, originally enacted m 1863, was substantially amended by the False
Claims Amendmemns Act of 1986. Congress enacted the amendments to enhance the
Government’s ability to recover losses resuiting from fraud against the United States.
The Act provides that any person who knowingly submits a false or fraudulent claim to the
government for payrment or approval, is liable for a civil penalty of up to $10,000 for cach such
claim, plus three times the amount of the damages sustained by the government. The Act
allows any person having information regarding a false or fraudulent claim against the
ROVeTDIENt to bring an action for himself and for the government and to share in any recovery.
The complaint is to be filed under seal for up to 60 days (without service on the defendant
during that periad) to enable the government to conduct its own investigation without the
defendant’s knowledge and determine whether to join the action.
Based on these provisions, plaintiffs/relators Russell E. Dingle and Thomas L. Rempfer seek to
recover damages and civil penalties arising from defendant’s presentation of false records,
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clamms, and statemcnts to the United States Government in connection with the various AVA
production contracts,

PARTIES
Plaintiff/relator Russell E. Dingle is a residemt of East Hartford, Connecticut. Mr. Dingle is
currently 2 member of the United States Air Force Reserve with 18 years of service to the
United States. Mr. Dingle became interested in AV A shortly after Secretary of Defense Cohen
annoumced a vaccination policy affecting the 2.4 million members of the United States Military
n December 1997. As an Air National Guardsman for Connecticut, Mr. Dingle was assigned
to a research team by his comunander to investigate the history of the anthrax vaccine and to
develop questions as necessary to present to the National Guard Burcau in Washington D.C.
Based on that research. Mr. Dingle found evidence that raised senous doubts about the safety
and effectiveness of the anthrax vaccine. As a result, Mr. Dmgle declined the vaccine and was
forced 1o resign from the Conmecticut Air National Guard in April 1999. Mr. Dingle bas
comntinued to conduct independent research on AVA from August 1998 through the present.
Mr. Dingle, to the best of his recollsction and records, has personal knowledge of the
aflegations contained in this complaint.
PlamufPrelator Thomas L. Rempfer is a resident of West Suffield, Connecticut. Mr. Rempfer
is currently a member of the United States Air Force Reserve with 17 years of service to the
United States. Mr. Rempfer became interested in AV A shortly after Secretary of Defense
Cohen announced a vaccination policy affecting 2.4 millior members of the United States
Military m December 1997. As an Air National Guardsman for Connecticut, Mr. Rempfer was
assigned to a research team by his commander to investigate the history of the anthrax vaccine
and to develop questions as necessary to present to the National Guard Bureau in Washington
D .C. Based on that research, Mr. Rempfer found evidence that raised serious doubts about the
safety and effectiveness of the anthrax vaccine. As a result, Mr. Rempfer declined the vaccine
and was forced to resign from the Connecticut Air Natiopal Guard in March 1999, Mr.
Rempfer has continued to conduct jndependent research on AVA from August 1998 to the
present. Mr. Rempfer, to the best of his recollection and records, has personal knowledge of the
allegations contained i this corpiaint.
Plaintiffs/relators Messrs. Dingle and Rempfer have combined their research to form the basis
for the ailegations in this complaint. |
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Detendant BioPort Corporation is a Michigan corporation with its principal place of busiess
m Lansing, Michigan. From the 1970°s until 1998, the Department of Defense procured AVA
from a facility owned by the state of Michgan The facility, first known as the Biclogic
Products Division of the Michigan Department of Pubiic Heaith and later as the Michigan
Biologic Product Institute (“MBPI”™) was soid to BioPort Corporation in September 1998. The
contracts DOD had with the Michigan facility transferred to BioPort Corporation. BioPort
Corporation was awarded apotber multi-million doilar contract for AVA by the DOD shortly
after the sale.
Defendant Robert C. Myers, a doctor of Vetermanian Medicine, was the Chief, Division of
Biologic Products, for the Michigan facility in 1990 and dircctly responsible for the production
of AVA, Dr. Myers later became the Director for MBPI. Dr. Myers is now Chief Operating
Officer for and a principal owner of BioPort Corporation.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331
and 31 U.S.C, § 3732, which confer jurisdiction on this Court for actions brought pursvan to
31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 and 3730,
This Court has personal jurisdiction over the defendants pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3732 (a),
which authorizes nationwide service of process. In addition, one or more of the defendants can
be found in, resides in, and/or transacts business in the Fastern District of Michigan.
Furthermore, one or more of the acts proscribed by 31 U.S.C. § 3729 occurred in the Eastern
District of Michigan.
Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 31 U.8.C. § 3732 (a) because one or more
defendants can be found in, resides in, and/or transacts business in the Eastern District of
Michigan and because one or more of the acts committed in violation of the False Claims Act
occurred in the Eastern District of Michigan.

BA 0

AVA was developed in the 19507s and 1960°s and licensed by the Division of Biologics,
National Institute for Health in 1970 to be manufactured by the Michigan Department of Public
Health. This is the only facility in the United States licensed to manufacture AVA. AVAisa
biologic product as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 262(i). The Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetics Act
{21 U.5.C. § 301 et seq) applies to a biological product subjecct to regulation under 42 U.S.C. §
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262. The provisions of regulations promulgated under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetics
Act are set forth in 21 C.F.R. Chapter 9 Food and Drugs. 21 C.F.R. sets forth the requirements
for the manufacture, storage, packaging, labeling, etc. of biologic products. 21 U.5.C. § 331
identifies acts prohibited under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetics Act (the act).
The United States Department of Defense purchases certain military systems or products on a
“soke source” basis. AV A is such a product. MBPI was and BioPort Corporation is the sole
license bolder and manufacturer of AVA in the United States. MBPI and BioPort Corporation
(herein after “BioPort™) have been the “sole source™ of AVA for the DOD. The DOD has a
decades lopg relationship with BioPort, substantially fundmg the entire facility in Lansing,
Michigan, to include all renovations, expansions and facility improvements and providing
government furnished equipment. DOD funding has allowed BioPort to modemize and expand
the production capability of AVA. DOD has been the majority customer for AVA over time,
DGD 1s currently the sole customer tor AVA produced by BioPort. The Federal Acquisition
Regulations apply to sole source contracts with DOD.
BioPort first produced AV A under an Investigational New Drug application (DBS-IND 180) in
1966. BioPon filed a license application for the manufacture of Anthrax Protective Antigen,
Aluminum Hydroxide Adsorbed in 1967. The specification for manufacture is based on U.S.
Patent 3,208,909. The license application references an article published in “Applied
Microbiclogy” thar details the production process. The license to manufacture AV A, granted
1970, is made of two parts. One is for the facility, the Establishment License Application
{ELA). The second is for the product, the Product License Application (PLA). BioPort
produced AVA continuously from its first contract (PH21-68-2064) in 196§ ustil January 1998
when the facility ceased production and was razed,

SPECIFIC ALLEGATIONS
BioPort underwent a major expansion in AV A production capacity in 1990. Dr. Myers notified
the Center for Biologics Evaluation and Research (CBER) in June 1990 that BioPort would
replace the approved fermenter and chill tank on or about 15 August 1990 with a new
fermenter. A 9 July 1990 Conversation Record by FDA employee Rebecca Devine to Dr.
Myers indicates that he was informed that this would be considered a major change and shouid
be submitted in the form of an ELA amendment.
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A July 1990 Trip Report to the Michigan facility by a member of the U.S. Army Medical
Research and Development Command indicates that at least one 100 Uner fermenter had been
added to the AVA production line and that a recently delivered 100 liter fermenter could be
diverted from production of another vaccine to the AV A production line.

A September 1990 Trip Report to the Michigan facility discusses the necessity and the ahility
1o put the recently acquired additional fermoenter into AVA production. Also discussed is the
total number of fermenters that the facility couid bold, i.c. three additional fermenters for a
total of four fermenters producing AVA. This Trip Report also indicates that FDA nmust
approve the change in fermenter types from glass-kined to stainless steel and that FDA
approval will require developing the definitive data that the product from the stainless steel
fermenters is the same as the glass-lived fermenters.

In December 1990, BioPort filed for an amendment to their ELA to include the expanded
manufacturing facility. Rather than replacing the original equipment as indicated i the June
1990 letter to CBER, the renovation included the addition of two AV A production lines
adjacent to the original AVA production line. The renovated facility contained three AVA
production lincs versus the one production line originally ticensed. This ELA amendment
request indicates that the renovation had already taken place.

Changes in the manufecturing process are governed by 21 U.S.C § 356a. and 21 CFR. §
601.12. 21 U.S.C § 356a. classifies a manufacturmg change that has substantial potential to
adversety affect the identity, strength, quality, purity, or potency of the drug as they may relate
to the safety and effectiveness of a drug as a “major” change. 21 U.S.C § 356a. requires that a
drug made with a major manufacturing change not be distributed until the Secretary approves
the application.

21 C.F.R. § 601.12 further defines a “major” manufacturing change as any change in the
product, production process, quality controls, equipment, facilities. or responsible personnel
that has a substantial potential to have an adverse effect on the identity, strength. quality,
purity, or potency of the product as they may relate to the safety and effectiveness of the
product. These changes include “Changes in the qualitative or quantitative formulation or other
specifications as provided in the approved application or in the regulations™ (21 C.F.R. §
601.12(b)2Xi)) and “Changes in the virus or adventitious agent remova) or inactivation
method(s);” (21C.F.R § 601.12(bX2KiiD)).
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The production line in the original ELA consisted of glass-lined fermenters, a glass-lined chill
tank, and sintered glass filters. The two production lines added i 1990 consisted of stainless
steel fermenters, stainless steci chill tanks, and low-protein-binding nylon membrane filters.
The amendment request, while indicating that stainless steel equipment was being used, failed
to identify this as a change in equipment type for the additional production lines. As a result,
FDA was unaware of the substantial potential of the amendment request to have an adverse
effect on the identity, strength, quality, purty, or potency of the product as they may relate to
the safety and cffectiveness of the product.

The vaccine manufactured from these three production lines is not the finai product. [t isa
preliminary product called a sublot. Sublots arc stored in butk. When a Lot of AVA is required,
BioPort combines a certain amount from several sublots to form the final Lot. This procedure
ensures uniformmity of vaccine over time. The AVA produced from the sublots after the two
production lines were added is different than the originally licensed AVA. According to
researchers, the AV A produced after the manufacturing change is more potent than the onginal
approved AVA.

The originat licensed vaccine sublots were produced from the only production line. Vaccine
produced after 1990 was a combination of the three production lines, mixing the sublots
produced by materially different fermenters and chillers. The primary components of the
originaily approved manufacturing process were glass-lined. The additional production lines
empioyed stamless steel, potentially affecting the qualitative formulation of the sublots and the
final Lots. BioPort failed to inform FDA m their ELA amendment request that the equipment
type had changed. 21 CF.R. § 601.12 requires prior approval before the product is distributed
after a major manufacturing change.

The omginal licensed sublots were tnactivated by use of a sintered glass filter. The two
additional production lines employed a low-protein-binding nylon membrane filter. The
sublots, inactivatcd by different methods, were combined to form final Lots. 21 C.FR. §
610.12(b)}(2)(v1) cousiders a change which may affect product sterility assurance, such as
changes in product or component sterilization methods a major change. BioPort faied to
inform FDA in their ELA amendment request that the filter type had changed. 21 CF.R. §
601.12 requires prior approval before tbe product is distrbuted after a major manufacturing
change.
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CBER approved the ELA amendment some years later. In 1996, Kenimer Associatcs
conducted an on-site review of the BioPort facility. A final observation in the closmg
paragraph indicates that as of 26 February 1996 the two fermenters had not been supplemented
{i.e. approved through an ELA amendment request). Therefore, BioPort delivered a least one
dose of AVA to DOD that was produced after the major manufacturing change had occurred
and before the ELA amendment was approved. Every dose delivered since the 1990
manufacturing change has occurred without an ELA amendment for the change in filter type.
21 C.F.R. § 601.12 requires prior approval before the product is distributed after a major
manufacturing change.

21 U.S.C. § 355 regulates new drugs. 21 U.S.C. § 321 defines a new drug in two ways. The
second defmition of a pew drug 13 “Any drug (except a new animal drug or an anomal feed
bearing or containing a new animal drog) the composition of which is such that such drug, as a
result of investigations to determine its safiety and effectivencss for use under such conditions,
has become so recognized. but which has not. otherwisc than in such investigations, been used
to a material extent or for a matenial time under such conditions.”

AVA met this defmition of a new drug in 1990. From 1972 until the Gulf War, BioPort
distnbuted approximately 70,000 doses of AVA in total. The vast majority of this was used in
research animals. The use in humans was essentially limited to those conducting that rescarch.
Beginning in 1988, DOD contracted for 300,00 doses over five years. Shortly after that, DOD
contracted for another 350,000 doses with options for 700,000 more. This vast increase in
production and “for use under such conditions. .. which has not. . .been used to a matenal
extent” meets he definition of a pew drug. . BioPort never sought to approve this new product
as a New Drug in accordance with 21 U.S.C. § 355.

The various application processes for a new drug require the submission of the actual patent or
patent pending iwformation for the new drug. The original license for AVA is based on U.S.
Patent 3,208,909. The two production lines added to the BioPort faciiity in 1990 did not
conform to the patented rethod for production of AV A, The patent specifically states the use
of glass fermenters and sintered glass filters. The two additional production lines use stainless
steel fermenters and low-protein-binding nylon membrage filters. The production of vaccine
with an up-patented method classifies the vaccine as a different product. A New Drug
application was therefore required for the vaccine produced by the additional production lines.



e T
@ -~ N v s W N — O

R =T - B = Y . LY T o R

33.

34.

35,

36.

37

Without an approved New Drug Application, the drug is unlicensed and unapproved. BioPort
never sought to approve this new product as a New Drug in accordance with 21 U.S.C. § 355.
A Reference Standard is used when testing the potency of biclogic products. This standard
ensures the quality (potency) of the drug over time. 21 C.F.R. § 601.12(b}(2)(1) considers a
chenge to the qualitative or quantitative formulation or other specifications as provided in the
approved application as a major change. BioPort changed the Reference Standard m 1991,
BioPort failed to apply for the requisite amendments.

42 U.S.C § 262 Reguiation of biological products requires that no person shall introduce or
deliver for introduction into mterstate commerce any biologic product unless a biclogics
license is in effect for the biological product. The vaceine produced by BioPort, from the time
the additional produetion lines started until the FDA approved the ELA amendment, was
produced without the appropriate biclogics license. The vaccine produced in this time frame
was disiributed to DOD as recently as 1998. Biologic products distributed without the
appropriate approved license is prohibited under 42 U.S.C. § 262.

21 C.F.R. Part 210 contams the Curremt Good Manufacturing Practice in Manufacturing,
Processing, Packing, or Holding of Drugs. 21 C.F.R. § 210.1(b) states that filure 10 comply
with any regulation set forth in this part and in parts 211 through 226 of this chapter shall
render such product adulterated under section S05(a)(2)}(B) of the Act and that such drug as
well as the person responsible for the failure 1o comply shall be subject to regulatory action.
Biologic products are required to have expiration dates (21 C.F.R. 211.137). The expiration dates,
or dating period limitations, for biologic products are listed in 21 C.F.R. § 610.53. 21 CF.R. §
€10.53 indicates that the expiration date for AV A is a maximum of three years from the start of
the latest valid potency test. On at least one occasion, BioPort redated expired vaccine without
an approved stability testing procedure as required by 21 C.F.R. § 211.137. The redated Lots
arc cousidered adultcrated IAW 21 C.F.R. § 210.1(b). 21 U.S.C. § 331 prohibits the delivery
of adulterated products in interstate commerce.

Biologic product labels must conform to 21 C.F.R. § 610.60. A requirement of 21 CFR._§
610.60 is 1o indicate the Lot number on the label. 21 C.F.R. § 201.18 states that the lot number
on the labe] of a drug should be capable of yielding the entirc manufacturing history of the
package. An incorrect Jot number may be regarded as causing the article to be misbranded. A
misbranded product is considered an adulterated product. On at least occasion BioPort
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misbranded vials of AVA. 21 U.S.C. § 331 prohibits the delivery of adulterated products and
the misbranding of products in interstate comunerce.

The Department of Defense contracted with BioPort on at least four occasions from 1988 to the
present for AV A; contract DMAD17-88-R-0149 awarded in 1988, contract DMAD17-90-C-
0159 awarded in 1990, contract DMAD17-91-C-1139 awarded in 1991, and contract
DMAD17-98-C-8052 awarded in 1998.

The term of DMAD17-88-R-0149 was 30 September 1988 to 30 Scptember 1993, The initial
value of this contract was 2.19 million dollars. AVA produced in the expanded facility was
used to fulfill at least a portion of this contract. The terms for the three other contracts began
after the facility expansion in 1990.

DMAD17-90-C-0159 was modified at least five times to include the exercise of options to
procure additional AVA. The value of this comract to BioPort was at least 4.66 million dollars
at the time of the fith modification. DMAD17-91-C-1139 was amended/modified at least
twenty three times to include the exercise of options to procure additional AVA. The value of
this contract to BioPort began at 13 31 million dollars and was at least 33_34 million dollars at
the time of the twenty-third meodification.

Amendment P30009 exercised the final option for additional AVA in DMAD17-91-C-1139.
This amendment, awarded it 1995, was DOD’s last production arder awarded prior to the
facility shutting down in January 1998. The contract term was extended to Septernber 1996 to
accommoedate the production of this option. Amendment P30012 further extended the contract
term to July 1997.

P30022 to DMAD17-91-C-1139 was awarded after the BioPort facility had ccased production
of AVA and the building had been shut down. P30022 modified DMAD17-91-C-1139 in
March 1998 to cover additional costs for the purpose of renovations to Building 12. Building
12 was demolished after BioPort ceased production in January 1998.

P30023 to DMAD17-91-C-1139 was awarded after BioPort had ceased production of AVA
and the building had been shut down. P30023 modified DMAD17-91-C-1139 in May 1998 to
provide Fiscal Year 1998 doHars for the construction portion of the AVA production suite
renovation wentificd in contract line item number 0001. Contractor line item number 0001 is
for remodeling of the existing facilities to manufacture AV A. The facility to manufacture AVA
was demolished after BioPort ceased production in January 1998.

- 10~
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DMAD17-98-C-8052 was awarded in September 1998 with an initial valuie of 6.25 million
dollars. Contract line item nuinber 0001 requires BioPort to provide 790,000 doses of AVA
through 31 October 1998. BioPort ceased production in January 1998 and later demolished the
facility. BioPort was incapable of producing any AV A at the time this contract was awarded.

COUNT ONE
[alse Claims Act
31 U.S.C. §§3927(a)(1) and (a)}(2)
Plaintiffs/relators re-allege and ncorporate by reference the allegations made in Paragraphs |
through 44 of this complaint.
This is a claun for treble damages and forfeitures under the False Claims Act.
31U.S.C. §§ 3729-32. as amended.
Through the acts described in this complamt, defendants failed to comply with the provisions
ot the Public Heaith Service regulations. The defendants knowingly concealed material facts,
modified their biologic production facility in violation of those provisions, and delivered an
unlicensed and unapproved drug product in order to obtain approval of and payment for the
various production contracts.
Through the acts described in this complaint, the defendants knowingly presented and caused
10 be presented to the United States and its officials an unlicensed and unapproved drug
product as the FDA licensed and approved drug product defendants were contracted to
produce. The defendants knowingly presentcd and caused to be presented to the United States
and its officials false and fraudulent claims for payment.
The United States, unaware of the falsity of the claims made and submitted by the defendants,
paid money to defendants that it otherwise would pot have paid.
By teason of the payments made by the United States to defendants as 2 result of their fraud,
the United States has suffered many millions of dollars in damages and continues to be

damaged.

=11 -
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CQUNT TWO
False Claims Act
31 U.S.C. §§ 3927(a)(1) and (a)(2)

Plaintiffs/relators re-allege and incorporate by reference the allegations made in Paragraphs |
through 44 of this complaint.
This is a claim for treble damages and forfeiturcs under the False Claims Act,
31U.8.C. §§ 3729-32, as amended.
Through the acts described in this complaint, defendants failed to comply with the provisions
of the Federal Food, Drugs, and Cosmetics Act. The defendants knowingly concealed material
facts, modified their biologic production facility m violation of those provisions, and delivered
an adukerated and misbranded drug product in order to obtain approval of and payment for the
various production coptracts.
Through the acts described in this compiaint, the defendants knowingly presented and caused
to be presented to the United States and its officials an adulterated and misbranded drug
product as the FA licensed and approved drug product defendants were contracted to
produce. The defendants knowingly presented and caused to be presented to the United States
and 1ts officials false and fraudulent claims for payment.
Through the acts described in this complaint, defendants knowingly concealed material facts in
order to obtain payment for and approval of the various production contracts and contract
amendments/modifications.

COUNT THREE
False Clams Act
31 US.C. §§ 3927(aX 1) and (a)(2)

Plantiffs/relators re-ullege and incorporate by reference the aliegations made in Paragraphs 1
through 44 of this complamt.
This is a claim for treble damapes and forfeitures under the False Claims Act,
31U.S.C. §§ 3729-32, as amended.
Through the acts described in this complaint, defendants failed to comply with the provisions
of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations. The defendants knowmgly concealed material
facts. modified their biologic production facility in violation of those provisions. and delivered

-12-
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an adulterated and misbranded drug product in order to obtain approval of and payment for the
various production contracts.

Through the acts described in this complaint, the defendants knowingly presented and caused
10 be presented to the United States and its officials an adultcrated and misbranded drug
product as the FDA licensed and approved drug product defendants were contracted to
produce. The defendants kmowingly presented and caused to be presented to the United States
and its officials faise and fraudulent claims for payment.

The United States, unaware of the falsity of the claims made and submitted by the defendants,
paid money to the defendants that it otherwise would not have paid.

By reason of the payments made by the United States to defendants as a result of their fraud,
the United States has suffered many millions of dollars in damages and continues to be
damaged.

COUNT FOUR
False Claims Act
31 U.S.C. §§ 3927()(3)

Plaintiffs/relators re-allcge and incorporate by reference the allegations made in Paragraphs 1
through 44 of this complaint,
This is a claim for treble damages and forfeitures under the False Clams Act,
31U.S.C. §§ 3729-32, as amended.
Through the acts described in this complaint, defendants knowingly presented and caused to be
presented to the United States and its officials false and fraudulent claims for payrment.
Through the acts described in this complaint, defendants knowiogly conspired to defraud the
Government by soliciting for products and services that could no longer be provided, and as a
result, getting a false or fraudulent claie approved and paid.
The United States, unaware of the falsity of the claims made and submitted by the defendants,
paid money to the defendants that it otherwise would not have paid.
By reason of the payments rmade by the United States to defendants as a result of thewr fraud,
the United States has suffered many millions of dollars in damages and continues to be
darnaged.

-13 -
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COUNT FIVE
False Claims Act

31 US.C. §§ 3927(a)(3)
Plaintiffs/relators re-allege and incorporate by referenve the allcgations made in Paragraphs 1
through 67 of this complaint.
This is a claim for treble damages and forfeitures under the Faise Claims Act,
31US.C. §§ 3729-32, as amended.
Through the acts described in this corplaint, defendants knowingly presented and caused to be
presepted to the United States and its officials an adulterated, misbranded, unapproved, and
unlicensed drug product as the FDA licensed and approved drug product defendants were
contracted to produce in vioiation of the General Standards of the Federal Acquisition
Reguiations.
Through the acts described in this complaint, defendants knowingly conspired to defraud the
Government by soliciting for products and services that could no longer be provided, and as a
result, getting a false or fraudulent claim approved and paid in violation of the General
Standards of the Federal Acquisition Regulations.
The United States, unaware of the falsity of the claims made and submitted by the defendants,
paid money to the defendants that it otherwise would not have paid.
By reason of the payments made by the United States to defendants as a result of their fraud,
the Umted States has suffered many millions of dollars in damages and continues 1o be

damaged.
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WHEREFORE, piaintiffs/relators tequest that judgment be entered in their favor against

defendants, ordering that:

I. defendants cease and desist from vielating 31 U.S.C. § 3729;

2. defepdants pay an amount equal to three tires the amount of damages the United States
has sustained as a result of defendants’ actions, plus a civil penalty of $10,000 for each
violation of 31 U.S.C. § 3729, plus a civil penalty for each violation of 21 U.S.C. § 331
pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 333, plus a civil pealty for each violation o[ 42 U.S.C. § 262
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 262(f).

3. defendants by restramned pursnant to 21 U.S.C. § 332(a).

4. defendants deliver to the court any and all remaining AVA drug products, else

condemnation and seizure by the court pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §§ 334{a)2)(D) and(d).

defendants revoke the establishment and product licenses pursuant to 21 CF.R.§ 601.5.

defendants by debarred pursuant o F.A.R. Section 9.

plaintiffs/relators each be awarded exactly one half the maximum amount allowed pursuant

to 31 UL.S.C. § 3730(d).

LAy

~ oo

8. plainiffs/relators each be awarded exactly one half all costs of this activn pursuant to 31
U.S.C. § 3730(d).

9. the United States and the plaintiffs/relators receive such other relief as the Court deems just
and proper.

JURY DEMAND
Pursuant 10 Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, plaintiffs/relators bereby
demand a tnal by jury.

Bw:

Russell E. Dingle and Thomas L. Rempfer

71 Shaughnessy Drive 3811 Phelps Road

East Hartford, CT 061138 West Suffield, CT 06093
860-568-8767 860-668-1512

QUITAM PLA.[NTH:" QUT TAM PLAINTIFF
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